Human Services Department Representative: VACANT | Tenant Representatives: Judith Morgan, Naomi Campbell
1st District: Rena Wang | 2" District: Jake Mackenzie | 3™ District: Chris Borr | 4th District: Teddie Pierce
5th District: VACANT | Executive Director: Michelle Whitman

Sonoma County Community Development Committee
Regular Meeting

PLEASE NOTE: This is a hybrid meeting and will be held in-person and online.

The meeting will be held in the Hearing Room of the Sonoma County Community
Development Commission located at 141 Stony Circle, Suite 210, Santa Rosa, CA, 95401.
The Zoom webinar may be accessed at the following link:
https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/97641042730?pwd=c3L07sssFew0BxHuY28ljJCbFVimbs.1
Telephone Option: (669) 444-9171
Webinar ID: 976 4104 2730
Passcode: 823071

Wednesday, December 17, 2025
10:00 am —12:00 pm

AGENDA
Call to Order and Roll Call
Public Comment - Items Not Listed on the Agenda Within the Subject Matter Jurisdiction
of the Committee

Comments are restricted to subject matters within the committee’s jurisdiction. All
commenters are allowed up to three minutes for comments at the discretion of the chair.

Approve Meeting Minutes from November 19, 2025 Meeting
The Committee will review, discuss, and may take action to approve the meeting minutes or
may recommend changes.

Recommended Action: Approve minutes

Executive Director’'s Report
Michelle Whitman, Executive Director
Director Whitman will provide an update on agency business.

Information Only — No action needed


https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/97641042730?pwd=c3L07sssFew0BxHuY28ljJCbFVimbs.1

Page 2

5. Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA): FY25-26 Funding Recommendations

Krista Fotou and Yesenia Lemus, Community Development Program Coordinators
Staff will present the PLHA funding recommendations for Fiscal Year 2025-26.

Recommended Action — Recommend approval of the FY25-26 PLHA funding
recommendations to the Board of Supervisors

6. Adjournment



Page 3

Next Regular Meeting Date:
January 21, 2026, 10:00 am — 12:00 pm

PUBLIC COMMENTS PRIOR TO THE COMMITTEE MEETING: Public comments may be submitted
via email to CDC-8130-Public-Comment@sonomacounty.gov. Virtual attendeesare encouraged
to submit their comments via email before the meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS DURING THE COMMITTEE MEETING: Any member of the audience that
would like to address the committee - please raise your hand during the public comment period,
which will be noted after staff have presented each item. When called by the Chair, please walk
to the table that is labeled with the Public Speaker nameplate, then you may state your name
and make your comments. Comments should be limited to the subject matter under discussion.
Virtual attendees may raise their hand using Zoom, or dial *9 to raise their hand by telephone
and will be directed to speak by the Chair. Each person is granted 3 minutes to speak; time
limitations are at the discretion of the Chair.

MEETING DOCUMENTS: The associated documentation is available on the website at
https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/development-services/community-development-

commission/boards-commissions-and-committees/community-development-committee. Any
changes to the date of the meeting, or any other updates, will be noticed on the above website.

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires an accommodation, an
alternative format, or requires another person to assist you while attending this meeting, please
contact the Section 504 Coordinator at (707) 565-7520 as soon as possible to ensure
arrangements for accommodation.

Language Services are available uponrequestif made at least 48 hoursin advance of the meeting
to help ensure availability. For more information or to request services, please contact the
Section 504 Coordinator at (707) 565-7520.

QUESTIONS ABOUT THIS MEETING
For questions related to this meeting please contact Commission staff by calling 707-565-1268.


mailto:CDC-8130-Public-Comment@sonomacounty.gov
https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/development-services/community-development-commission/boards-commissions-and-committees/community-development-committee
https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/development-services/community-development-commission/boards-commissions-and-committees/community-development-committee

Page 4

COMENTARIOS PUBLICOS ANTES DE LA REUNION DEL COMITE: Pueden enviarse por correo
electronico a Veronica.Ortiz-DeAnda@sonomacounty.gov.

COMENTARIOS DEL PUBLICO DURANTE LA REUNION DEL COMITE: Cualquier miembro de la
audiencia que desee dirigirse al Comité sobre un asunto de la agenda, por favor alze la mano
cuando el presidente del comité anuncie el asunto y pregunte si hay alguien que quiera hacer un
comentario. Cuando el presidente lo llame, dirijase a la mesa de comentarios publicos, diga su
nombre y haga sus comentarios. Para que todos los interesados tengan la oportunidad de hablar,
limite sus comentarios al tema en discusidon. Generalmente a cada persona se le conceden 3
minutos para hablar; Las limitaciones de tiempo quedan a discrecidn del presidente.

DOCUMENTOS DE LA REUNION: La documentacién asociada estd disponible en el sitio web en
https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/development-services/community-development-
commission/boards-commissions-and-committees/community-development-committee.
Cualquier cambio en la fecha de la reunion, o cualquier otra actualizacién, se notificard en el sitio
web mencionado arriba.

SERVICIOS PARA LOS DISCAPACITADOS: Si tiene una discapacidad que requiere un alojamiento,
un formato alternativo o requiere que otra persona lo ayude mientras asiste a esta reunion,
comuniquese con el Coordinador de la Seccién 504 al (707) 565-7520 lo antes posible para
garantizar los arreglos para alojamiento.

Los servicios linguisticos estan disponibles si recibimos su peticion al menos 48 horas antes dela
reunion para ayudar a garantizar la disponibilidad. Para obtener mas informacién o solicitar
servicios, comuniquese con el Coordinador de la Seccién 504 al (707) 565-7520.

PREGUNTAS SOBRE ESTA REUNION
Si tiene preguntas sobre esta reunién, por favor comuniquese con el personal de la Comisién
llamando al 707-565-7520.


https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/development-services/community-development-commission/boards-commissions-and-committees/community-development-committee
https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/development-services/community-development-commission/boards-commissions-and-committees/community-development-committee

Human Services Department Representative: VACANT | Tenant Representatives: Judith Morgan, Naomi Campbell
1%t District: Rena Wang | 2" District: Jake Mackenzie (Chair) | 3" District: Chris Borr (Vice Chair)
4th District: Teddie Pierce | 5* District: VACANT| Executive Director: Michelle Whitman

Sonoma County Community Development Committee
Regular Meeting

DRAFT Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, November 19, 2025
141 Stony Circle, Suite 210, Santa Rosa, CA 95401
10:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
1. Call to Order and Roll Call
The meeting was called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Chair Mackenzie.

Community Development Commission (CDC) staff conducted the roll call.

Community Development Committee Members

Rena Wang — District 1 Absent

Jake Mackenzie, Chair — District 2 Present
Chris Borr, Vice Chair — District 3 Absent

Teddie Pierce — District 4 Present
VACANT — District 5 VACANT
Judy Morgan — Tenant Representative Present
Naomi Campbell — Tenant Representative Present
VACANT — Human Services Representative VACANT

CDC and Sonoma County Housing Authority Staff Present

Michelle Whitman, Executive Director

Rhonda Coffman, Deputy Director

Cynthia Meiswinkel, Intake and Occupancy Specialist

Laurie Dinwiddie, Affordable Housing Finance Specialist

Veronica Ortiz-De Anda, Community Development Assistant Manager
Valerie Johnson, Community Development Program Coordinator
Matthew Burns, Administrative Aide

2. Public Comments for ltems Not on the Agenda
One member of the public made a comment regarding the need for additional affordable
rental housing within Sonoma County.

3. Approval of October 22, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Public comments: None.



Action: The committee moved to approve the meeting minutes.

Motion: Morgan
Second: Campbell

Ayes: Mackenzie, Pierce, Morgan, Campbell
Noes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Wang, Borr

Motion Passed.

Executive Director’'s Report

Director Whitman reported that the Commission was not negatively affected by the recent
government shutdown and that staff from the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) have begun working with Commission staff to finalize reports
and other items that were left pending prior to the shutdown. Director Whitman also
provided an update regarding the Tierra de Rosas housing project in the Roseland
neighborhood of Santa Rosa and highlighted an upcoming community engagement event
related to the project, which will be held in December. Director Whitman concluded her
presentation by reminding the committee about the date of the next meeting and
responding to questions.

Public comments: One member of the public made a comment.

PUBLIC HEARING: Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER)

Valerie Johnson, Community Development Program Coordinator, presented the CAPER to
the committee. In her presentation, Ms. Johnson provided background information about
the CAPER and summarized the key elements of the report, including the goals established
in the 2020 Consolidated Plan, which comprise three main categories: affordable housing,
homelessness, and non-housing community development. Ms. Johnson concluded her
presentation by responding to questions from the committee.

Chair Mackenzie opened the public hearing.

Public comments: One member of the public made a comment

Chair Mackenzie closed the public hearing.

PUBLIC HEARING: Substantial Amendment to the Citizen Participation Plan
Veronica Ortiz-De Anda, Community Development Assistant Manager, presented a

Substantial Amendment to the Citizen Participation Plan. Ms. Ortiz-De Anda summarized
the proposed revisions to the plan and concluded her presentation by responding to



questions from the committee.
Public comments: One member of the public made a comment.

Action: The committee moved to recommend approval of the Citizen Participation Plan
Substantial Amendment to the Board of Supervisors.

Motion: Pierce
Second: Morgan

Ayes: Mackenzie, Pierce, Morgan, Campbell
Noes: None

Abstain:  None

Absent: Wang, Borr

Motion Passed.

Federal Funding and Low-Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund (LMIHAF) Policies
Veronica Ortiz-De Anda, Community Development Assistant Manager, presented the
updated funding policies that govern federal funding sources and the LMIHAF program. Ms.
Ortiz-De Anda briefly explained the purpose of the funding policies and the proposed
revisions. Ms. Ortiz-De Anda concluded her presentation by responding to questions from
the committee.

Public comments: One member of the public made a comment.

Action: The committee moved to recommend approval of the revised policies to the Board
of Supervisors and Board of Commissioners.

Motion: Morgan

Second: Campbell

Ayes: Mackenzie, Pierce, Morgan, Campbell
Noes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Wang, Borr

Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 11:35 a.m.



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
Sonoma County Housing Authority
141 Stony Circle, Suite 210, Santa Rosa, CA 95401
P.O. Box 12025, Santa Rosa CA 95406-2025

MEMORANDUM

Date: December 17, 2025

To: Community Development Committee (CD Committee)

From: Yesenia Lemus, Community Development Program Coordinator
Subject: Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA) Funding Recommendations
BACKGROUND

The Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund and PLHA programs were created through California Health
and Safety Code (HSC) Section 50470. PLHA is a California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) state funding program. The principal goal of this program is to make funding
available to eligible local governments in California for housing-related projects and assist in addressing
the unmet housing needs of their local communities. Twenty percent of the funding in the Building
Homes and Jobs Trust Fund is required to be expended for Affordable Ownership Workforce Housing
(AOWH), and the program prioritizes investments that increase the supply of housing to households
that are at or below 50% of the Area Median Income (AMI), adjusted for household size.

Sonoma County’s (County) PLHA 5-year plan identifies the types of activities that funding will be used
to support and specifies allocating its annual awards to the following categories: 75% of funding to
affordable multi-family rental housing for units available to households at or below 50% AMI, 20% to
AWOH with units available to households at or below 120% AMI, with 5% allocated to administrative
costs associated with implementing the PLHA program.

NOTICE OF FUNDING AVAILABILITY (NOFA)

The Commission published a PLHA NOFA on September 10, 2025, requesting funding proposals for
eligible affordable housing projects located in Sonoma County with a preference given to AOWH and
eligible projects that are ready to proceed towards construction. The preference for AOWH is due to
the lack of adequate funding requests from qualified projects during the 5-year PLHA plan and the need
to ensure the 20% requirement is met, cumulatively by the end of the plan period.

The funds available in this NOFA are $840,284, with a maximum of $686,075 available for rental
housing projects and the balance for AOWH projects. Funding awards are provided in the form of a
loans to qualified developers to undertake activities which create, maintain, or expand the County’s
affordable housing stock. Program income, which is generated through any surplus cash repayment,
loan repayment, etc., is used for eligible activities specified in the 5-year PLHA plan and PLHA program
guidelines.

@ Telephone (707) 565-7500

FAX (707) 565-7583  TDD (707) 565-7555



Staff conducted a mandatory technical assistance session for interested applicants, to review detailed
application requirements, funding eligibility, and to answer prospective applicant questions.
Applications were due on October 30, 2025, and a total of four funding requests were received in
response to the NOFA. Applications were reviewed by Commission staff for eligibility and consistency
with the applicable program requirements including funding and loan policies. Not all requests are
being recommended for funding, due to the limited amount of funds available. Prior to this meeting,
staff met with applicants that were not recommended for a funding award to review the reasons their
applications were not considered.

FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS

Staff reports were prepared for each funding request and are included in this memorandum as an
attachment. The reports include a detailed summary of the analysis and evaluation of each request.
Based on information provided in the applications, including review against the criteria of the PLHA
funding program, staff recommends the following funding awards:

PLHA Program - Funds Available: $840,284 (maximum of $686,075 for rental housing)

Project Total | Funds Funding
Project Applicant

Location Units | Requested Recommended
Gravenstein The Society of St. Vincent de Paul Sebastopol 22 $550,000 $200,000
Commons District Council Sonoma County Inc.
Heritage Park | Linc Housing Corporation Windsor 33 $840,284 $486,075
Apartments
Total $1,390,284 $686,075

The remainder of the funds included in the NOFA will be set aside for AOWH projects, on an over-the-
counter application basis, until funds are exhausted or until the required 20% set aside is allocated.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff recommends that the CD Committee take the following actions:
e Recommend approval of funding recommendations as presented by staff to the Board of
Supervisors.

Attachments:
1. Gravenstein Commons, Saint Vincent de Paul Staff Report
2. Heritage Park, Linc Housing Corporation Staff Report
3. Redwood Glen, Spectrum Affordable Housing Corporation Staff Report
4. Saggio Hills Phase I, Freebird Development Company Staff Report




Attachment 1

Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
Staff Report

Organization Name: The Society of St. Vincent de Paul District Council Sonoma County, Inc.
(“svdP”)

Project Name: Gravenstein Commons
Project Type: Permanent Supportive Housing (“PSH”)

Project Description:

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“St. Vincent de Paul (SVdP) requests support for construction of Gravenstein Commons, a new permanent
supportive housing (PSH) project in Sebastopol. Gravenstein Commons will have 22 junior one-bedroom
apartments, including a manager unit. All units will have kitchenettes; seven units will be accessible to
persons with mobility, vision and/or hearing disabilities. A common area will be located at the center of
the site. As with our first PSH project, Santa Rosa Commons, we will provide permanent housing with
critical support services for chronically homeless individuals. SVdP began site work at Gravenstein
Commons in July 2025, even as we raise the balance of construction funds. We request a County
investment of $550,000 in PLHA funds to ensure project completion.”

Amount Requested: $550,000

Proposed use of funds: Construction costs

Report

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project? Does
the developer demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and/or other
federal and state funding to develop housing within the last seven years?

SVdP has secured state funding on this and other projects within the last seven years. A
significant funding gap for the project remains as of the time of this application and based on
the information provided in the application materials, it is unknown whether the applicant has
the capacity to effectively fund the project via state, local, and or private funding sources.

If the application is for acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of becoming
market rate housing without additional CDC funding?

Not applicable; the application is not for acquisition and/or preservation. The project is
currently under construction and the requested funds are to assist in construction expenses.

Does the project set aside units for persons or households experiencing homelessness or who
are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

Yes, the project will serve persons/households experiencing homelessness or who are at risk of
becoming homeless, applying a Housing First approach. Tenants will be offered on-site
supportive services provided by SVdP.



Will the project provide units for special needs populations?

Yes, the project will provide twenty-one (21) units for persons/households experiencing
homelessness or who are at risk of homelessness, with seven (7) units accessible to individuals
with mobility, hearing, and/or vision disabilities.

Does the project address one of the following?
1) Creating or preserving affordable housing

2) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support the creation or preservation of
affordable housing

3) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income communities

4) Promoting effective and proven strategies for homelessness prevention and intervention
county-wide that align with Continuum of Care Strategic Plan goals

5) Emphasizing self-sufficiency of agencies and or life skills for beneficiaries
Yes, the project addresses the following:

1) The project will create 21 units of PSH for individuals experiencing homelessness or who
are at risk of becoming homeless.

4) SVdP will take referrals from Coordinated Entry and provide supportive services for the
prevention and intervention of homelessness in alignment with Continuum of Care
Strategic Plan goals.

5) Supportive services include self-sufficiency and life skills education, case management,
and wrap-around services in partnership with existing agencies within the County.

List the number and size of the proposed units, including the income levels to be served:
22 total units including 1 manager unit. The units are studios and approximately 450 sq ft.

The proposed unit size and income level are as follows:

Household Types Studio

Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI) 21

Other 1
TOTAL 22

Are the proposed household AMI levels allowed by the requested funding source?

Yes, the proposed AMI levels serve households earning no more than 30% AMI, while PLHA
allows for up to 50% AMI.



Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

a) The projectis fully entitled

b) Only partial funding for both construction and operations is secured/committed
c) Building permits were approved July 2025

d) Environmental reviews completed

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

Yes, if all proposed funds are secured, the PLHA funds requested would be leveraged 16:1.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status
Homekey $5,775,520 Awarded

Measure O $1,000,000 Pending

Private Foundations $771,778 Not yet applied
PLHA $550,000 Subject of this request
Private Donations $343,613 Awarded
Community Foundation $100,000 Awarded

Sonoma County

Irwin Foundation $100,000 Awarded

Trione Fund $100,000 Awarded

Private Donations 587,887 Awarded

Tamalpais Pacific $75,000 Awarded

Leidy Foundation $50,000 Awarded

TOTAL $8,953,798

ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status
Homekey S$5,775,520 Awarded

Measure O $1,000,000 Pending

Private Donations $856,500 Awarded

PLHA $550,000 Subject of this request
Other sources §771,778 Pending/not applied
TOTAL $8,953,798

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-term maintenance and operations?

SVdP has provided a 30-Year cash flow financial analysis with the assumption of 21 Project
Based Voucher’s (PBV) awarded in year four. Prior to the assumed award of 21 PBV’s, the
financial analysis indicates that Homekey funds will be used to fund operations during years 1-
3, with $40,000 annually from “Private Contributions” and $40,000 annually in “Grants (County,
3



CoC, City, Foundations)”. The financial narrative provides that SVdP plans to raise sufficient
funding to repay the principal and interest of acquisition loan before year 10, although the
principal loan amount is not shown on the financial analysis. Said acquisition loan is also shown
as a source, rather than a debt/use elsewhere in the application and narrative.

A few key points to note on the financial aspect of the project:

- The total amount of SVdP’s reserves available must be verified. A commitment letter
from SVdP is needed for its reserve funds committed to the project. It’s important to
note that SVdP cannot be reimbursed with PLHA funds if expenses are first paid with
SVdP reserves.

- SVdP indicates in the application that PLHA funds are a grant/forgivable; this is
inaccurate. PLHA funds are provided as a loan, and PLHA funds/residual receipts loan
payments must be represented in the 30-year cash flow analysis.

- The award letters submitted with the application materials account for $275,000 in
funds committed, plus $6.4 million in Homekey state funds. Of the $6.4 million,
$693,215 are reserved for Operations in years 1-3. Therefore, the total verified awards
received for construction of the project are approximately $6 million. Based on the
application materials provided, the construction budget is short $1.7 million dollars
(calculated with applicant’s assumption of Measure O award, PLHA award, and
$771,778 in funds pending application) and the operational budget is short
approximately $1.4 million dollars (assuming a future award of PBV’s before year four).

- The application states that “fundraising and the project’s residual receipts should be
adequate to service debt,” but there are no residual receipts available since SVdP is
modeling a contribution of its own funds to cover operating expenses beginning in year
one. Therefore, it is unclear which residual receipts the applicant is referring to.
Payments toward principal of the acquisition loan are not reflected in the 30-year cash
flow financial analysis. Terms of repayment for the PLHA loan, if awarded, will be 3%
interest for 30 years to be repaid via residual receipts, however, they are not reflected
in 30-year cash flow financial analysis.

- The project is subject to state prevailing wages and the contractor’s bid states it has
been priced for prevailing wages. Therefore, the project complies with this state
requirement.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes, the project Affirmatively Furthers Fair Housing by providing Permanent Supportive Housing
to Extremely Low-Income households experiencing homelessness in a High Resource
neighborhood (a Housing and Community Development determination).

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

Yes, SVdP jointly applied for and was awarded Homekey funds with support from the City of
Sebastopol. Building permits have been issued and the project is currently under construction.



Additional Information:

Project construction has commenced; however, only partial construction and operating funding
is secured. The application is unclear on the number of units restricted (21 or 22) as the
manager’s unit is shown as restricted to 50% AMI. If awarded PLHA funds, applicant will need to
confirm that at least one unit of the total units is unrestricted and reserved for an onsite
manager.

Consequences of Partial or No Funding:

The project is facing budget gaps with or without PLHA funding. The consequences of receiving
a partial award or no funding will correlate with the amount of funding for which SVdP will
need to continue to apply to complete construction and ensure adequate operational expenses
are supported for the project.

Staff Recommendation:

The financial stability of the project relies on the applicant’s assumed award of Project Based
Vouchers (PBVs) by the Sonoma County Housing Authority as shown in the project’s financial
analysis. At this time, no PBVs are available to award, and it is unknown by staff when they will
next become available. While the project has a construction and operational funding gap, staff
recommend awarding $200,000 of PLHA funds to support the project as Permanent Supportive
Housing is highly needed countywide, and this will aid in reducing the project construction
shortfall.



Preliminary Condition(s) of Approval

Allocated funding will be a loan.

All loans for Affordable Housing Acquisition, Predevelopment, Construction, Multi-
family Housing Rehabilitation, and Community Facilities are subject to the provisions
of the Sonoma County Community Development Commission (CDC) Loan Policies and
PLHA guidelines

2. | Developer must demonstrate site control at the time PLHA funding is made available.

3. | PLHA funds will be used to reimburse allowable and eligible costs only.

An environmental review must be completed before Developer can be offered a
4. | Funding Agreement. Evidence that sufficient funds for this purpose are available from
another source to pay for this work must be provided.

In compliance with Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, developer
must design and construct 5 percent of the dwelling units, or at least one unit,

5. | whichever is greater, to be accessible for persons with mobility disabilities. An
additional 2 percent of the dwelling units, or at least one unit, whichever is greater,
must be accessible for persons with hearing or visual disabilities.

The CDC will make the loan to St. Vincent de Paul as the Developer. A subsequent
assignment to a limited partnership must comply with all applicable state and or

6. | federal regulations. Notwithstanding this requirement, Developer may assign the loan
to a limited partnership prior to project completion and occupancy of the
development.

Developer will be required to submit evidence that all required construction and
7. | permanent financing has been committed prior to being offered a Developer
Agreement.

Developer will be required to submit an acceptable site appraisal that demonstrates
that the “as is” value of the property will fully secure the loan prior to receiving a

8. | funding commitment. The CDC will require the loan to record in a sufficiently senior
lien position to ensure that the value of the completed development will fully secure
the loan.

Prior to final approval of the PLHA funds, Developer must demonstrate sufficient
Article 34 authority for the affordable units if they exceed forty-nine percent of the
total affordable units or submit a written legal opinion describing why Article 34
authority is not required.




10.

Developer must satisfy all regulatory requirements and all conditions of approval that
are set forth in the SCCDC Loan Policies as prerequisite to the CDC offering the Funding
Agreement for execution within 12 months of the start of the fiscal year associated
with the award. Disbursement of funds must be initiated within 24 months of the date
on which the Funding Agreement is offered for execution. All funds must be disbursed
within 36 months of the date on which the Funding Agreement is offered for
execution. Funding awards that do not meet these deadlines will be reprogrammed.

11.

The project must be completed within four years of the date on which the Funding
Agreement is offered for execution. Project completion will be documented by the
submission of a temporary or permanent certificate of occupancy for the project.
Rental units must be occupied by income-eligible households within 12 months of
project completion.




Attachment 2

Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
Staff Report

Organization Name: Linc Housing Corporation

Project Name: Heritage Park
Project Type: Affordable Rental Housing - Multifamily

Project Description

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“Heritage Park Apartments will be a 33-unit apartment project in Windsor that will serve families and
individuals at risk of homelessness, veterans and veteran families, along with working class families. The
Project has 8 PBV vouchers from Sonoma County and 10 VASH from the City of Santa Rosa. Most of the
units are extremely low-income (18 units at 30% AMI), and the rest are low-income (14 units at 50-80%
AMI). The Project will consist of one 3-story building served by an elevator with a mix of one-bedroom
to three-bedroom units. Project amenities include a community room with a full kitchen, 2 resident
services rooms, tot lot, outdoor recreation areas, 3 laundry rooms, manager’s office, and on-site
parking. Fifteen percent of the units will be ADA accessible, and all units are adaptable.”

Amount Requested: $840,284

Proposed use of funds: Funds will be used to offset PG&E utility expenses related to offsite
improvements.

Report

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project? Does
the developer demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and/or other
federal and state funding to develop housing within the last seven years?

Yes, Linc Housing Corporation has experience in the development and operation of affordable
housing projects. The application indicates that the non-profit organization has been in
business for 40 years and within the past five years has developed more than 1,000 affordable
units in the state, ranging from complexes of 14 units to 340 units. Linc Housing Corporation
has developed these residential projects using different types of state and federal funding
sources including 9% and 4% low-income housing tax credits, Infill Infrastructure Grants,
Project-Based Vouchers, and tax-exempt bonds as well as others.

If the application is for acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of becoming
market rate housing without additional CDC funding?

The funding application is not for acquisition and/or preservation. The project is currently
under construction.

Does the project set aside units for persons or households experiencing homelessness or who
are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

The application indicates that the project will serve households currently experiencing
homelessness and at-risk of homelessness as well as other lower income households. On-site
supportive services will be offered by Reach for Home to all future residents to ensure housing

1



stability. The project has been funded with 10 VASH vouchers from the City of Santa Rosa and
therefore, at least 10 units will be designated for veterans.

Will the project provide units for special needs populations?

Yes, the project will provide housing for veterans and homeless households, including
households experiencing or fleeing domestic violence, stalking, and or human trafficking. The
project is not age or occupation restricted (e.g. agriculture/farm workers); therefore, it will be
available to all eligible seniors, female-head of households and other special need populations.
A total of five units will be ADA accessible and all units in the project will be adaptable.

Does the project address one of the following?
1) Creating or preserving affordable housing

2) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support the creation or preservation of
affordable housing

3) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income communities

4) Promoting effective and proven strategies for homelessness prevention and intervention
county-wide that align with Continuum of Care Strategic Plan goals

5) Emphasizing self-sufficiency of agencies and or life skills for beneficiaries

Yes, the project will increase the supply of affordable rental housing in Sonoma County by 33
units and the supportive services offered to the project residents will assist vulnerable
households in achieving stable housing and increasing the likelihood of self-sufficiency.
Therefore, it will address numbers 1 and 5 listed above.

List the number and size of the proposed units, including the income levels to be served:

1-Bedroom | 2-Bedroom | 3-Bedroom

Income Level (4 units) (16 units) | (13 units)

Extremely Low

Up to 30% Area Median Income (AMI) 4 10 4
Low Income — Up to 80% of AMI 5 9
Other — Residential Manager 1

Total 33 units 4 16 13

Are the proposed household AMI levels supported by the requested funding source?

PLHA funds are limited to supporting households at 50% of the Area Median Income (AMI) or
below. The project is proposing to serve households up to 80% AMI. To comply with the PLHA
guidelines, only the units restricted for households with income up to 50% AMI would be
supported by PLHA funds.



Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing

commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

a. The projectis currently under construction and therefore, has received planning

entitlements.

b. Except for this funding request, the project has secured all other necessary funding.

c. Building permits have beenissued as the project is under construction.

d. Environmental clearance for both the California Environmental Quality Act and the

National Environmental Policy Act has been issued to the project.

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least

7:1?

Yes, if the funding requested is awarded, the requested funds would leverage against total

development costs approximately 34 to 1.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status

JP Morgan Chase $18,276,798 Funded

Affordable Housing Program (AHP) $960,000 Funded

HOME-ARP Federal Funds $598,302 Funded

Town of Windsor Loan S565,000 Funded

Town of Windsor Loan $1,200,000 Funded

Home Depot Grant $150,000 Committed

Town of Windsor Impact Fee Loan $739,784 Funded

Tax Credit Equity $3,676,143 Partially Funded

Deferred Development Fee $2,132,000 Committed

GP Advances $214,464 Funded

PLHA Sonoma County $840,284 This Request
TOTAL | $29,352,775

ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status

JP Morgan Chase $6,109,835 Committed

AHP $960,000 Committed

HOME-ARP Federal Funds $598,302 Funded

Town of Windsor Loan $565,000 Funded

Town of Windsor Loan $1,200,000 Funded

Town of Windsor Loan $739,784 Funded

Home Depot Grant $150,000 Funded

Accrued Deferred Interest $38,760 Anticipated

Tax Credit Equity $16,858,526 Committed

Deferred Development Fee $452,000 Committed

PLHA Sonoma County $840,284 This Request

TOTAL

$29,352,775




Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-term maintenance and operations?

Yes, the applicant provided at 30 -year financial proforma and adequate provision for long-term
maintenance and operations are included. The project shows 2.5% income and 3.5% expenses
inflators. The application indicates that the project will be setting aside replacement reserves to
ensure that the building and systems are properly maintained.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes, the project will provide much needed affordable rental housing for special needs and lower
income households in the Town of Windsor. The provision of supportive services to the
residents will assist them in retaining housing and support them in learning skills that could
potentially lead them to access better employment, financial, and or housing opportunities.

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

Yes, the project is supported by the Town of Windsor. Building permits have been issued and
the town supported the project with financing.

Additional Information:

The project is under construction and completion is planned for the spring of 2026. The project
developed a gap in funding, because PG&E costs resulted in much higher amounts than
expected. PLHA funds would support the units that are designated for households at 50% AMI
or less. This project is not subject to the Buy America, Build America Act, which is a federal
requirement of projects to secure raw building materials and other products that are
manufactured in the United States.

Consequences of Partial or No Funding:

The application indicates that if no funding, or if partial funding is awarded, construction would
still move forward to obtain the temporary certificate of occupancy, because funds from other
areas of the budget could be transferred to cover this utility expense. However, the final
certificate of occupancy could be delayed until funding is secured from other sources.

Staff Recommendation:

The PLHA Plan for Sonoma County requires that a portion of the funds be awarded to
homeownership projects. The notice of funding availability that was published indicated that
preference would be given to eligible ownership projects. However, the Commission did not
receive any funding requests for ownership projects. Consequently, a total of $154,208 must be
set aside from the total amount available to be awarded to a future ownership project. Staff is
recommending that the remaining amount be awarded to this and another project. Staff
recommends that a total of $486,075 of PLHA funds be awarded to this project.



Preliminary Condition(s) of Approval

Allocated funding will be a grant[_] aloan &

All loans for Affordable Housing Acquisition, Predevelopment, Construction, Multi-
family Housing Rehabilitation, and Community Facilities are subject to the provisions
of the Sonoma County Community Development Commission (CDC) Loan Policies and
PLHA guidelines

Developer must demonstrate site control at the time PLHA funding is made available.

PLHA funds will be used to reimburse allowable utility costs only.

An environmental review must be completed before Developer can be offered a
Funding Agreement. Evidence that sufficient funds for this purpose are available from
another source to pay for this work must be provided.

In compliance with Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, developer
must design and construct 5 percent of the dwelling units, or at least one unit,
whichever is greater, to be accessible for persons with mobility disabilities. An
additional 2 percent of the dwelling units, or at least one unit, whichever is greater,
must be accessible for persons with hearing or visual disabilities.

The CDC will make the loan to Linc Housing Corporation as the Developer. A
subsequent assignment to a limited partnership must comply with all applicable state
and or federal regulations. Notwithstanding this requirement, Developer may assign
the loan to a limited partnership prior to project completion and occupancy of the
development.

Developer will be required to submit evidence that all required construction and
permanent financing has been committed prior to being offered a Developer
Agreement.

Developer will be required to submit an acceptable site appraisal that demonstrates
that the “as is” value of the property will fully secure the loan prior to receiving a
funding commitment. The CDC will require the loan to record in a sufficiently senior
lien position to ensure that the value of the completed development will fully secure
the loan.

Developer will be required to submit an acceptable post-construction appraisal prior
to receiving final approval to expend PLHA funds for construction costs. The CDC will
require the loan to record in a sufficiently senior lien position to ensure that the value
of the completed development will fully secure the loan.

10.

Prior to final approval of the PLHA funds, Developer must demonstrate sufficient
Article 34 authority for the affordable units if they exceed forty-nine percent of the
total affordable units or submit a written legal opinion describing why Article 34
authority is not required.




11.

Developer must satisfy all regulatory requirements and all conditions of approval that
are set forth in the SCCDC Loan Policies as prerequisite to the CDC offering the Funding
Agreement for execution within 12 months of the start of the fiscal year associated
with the award. Disbursement of funds must be initiated within 24 months of the date
on which the Funding Agreement is offered for execution. All funds must be disbursed
within 36 months of the date on which the Funding Agreement is offered for
execution. Funding awards that do not meet these deadlines will be reprogrammed.

12.

The project must be completed within four years of the date on which the Funding
Agreement is offered for execution. Project completion will be documented by the
submission of a temporary or permanent certificate of occupancy for the project.
Rental units must be occupied by income-eligible households within 12 months of
project completion.




Attachment 3

Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
Staff Report

Organization Name: Spectrum Affordable Housing Corporation

Project Name: Redwood Glen Apartments
Project Type: New Construction of Affordable Housing

Project Description

“Redwood Glen Apartments, located on a 1.54-acre site along Old Redwood Highway in
Windsor, CA, will provide 43 affordable family housing units (including one manager’s unit). All
of the one to three bedroom units will be for very-low/low income persons, and the units will be
configured for accessibility in a single elevator-served building. The building will be four stories
high along the main street frontage and step to three stories at the rear to modulate scale from
commercial to residential neighbors. There will be on-grade parking accessed around a loop
drive. The project will feature residential amenity space including a community center with
kitchen, administrative offices, residential services, mail room, laundry rooms, trash and
recycling rooms.”

Amount Requested: $650,000

Proposed use of funds: Acquisition expenses.

Report

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project? Does
the developer demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and/or other
federal and state funding to develop housing within the last seven years?

Yes, the applicant has secured tax credit and tax-exempt bond financing, Multifamily Housing
Program funds, HOME Investment Program funds, Community Development Block Grant funds,
Infill Infrastructure Grant funds, and other federal, state and local funds within the last seven
years. The Sonoma County Community Development Commission has previously awarded this
project federal HOME American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) act funds, Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG), and PLHA funds totaling $2,207,327.

If the application is for acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of becoming
market rate housing without additional CDC funding?

The project will be new construction of affordable rental housing.

Does the project set aside units for persons or households experiencing homelessness or who
are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

Yes, the project includes five (5) units of Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) for
persons/households experiencing chronic homelessness. Social supportive services will be



offered to all residents and intensive case management services will be available to those
tenants residing in the PSH units.

Will the project provide units for special needs populations?

Yes, the California Department of Housing and Community Development defines persons
experiencing homelessness and large families as members of the special needs’ population. The
project includes five (5) units of PSH and thirty-seven (37) 3-bedroom units for large families.

Does the project address one of the following?

1) Creating or preserving affordable housing

2) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support the creation or preservation of
affordable housing

3) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income communities

4) Promoting effective and proven strategies for homelessness prevention and intervention
county-wide that align with Continuum of Care Strategic Plan goals

5) Emphasizing self-sufficiency of agencies and or life skills for beneficiaries
Yes, the project addresses items 1, 4, and 5:
- Redwood Glen will create 43 units of new affordable rental housing

- The project will provide five PSH units for persons/households experiencing chronic
homelessness.

- The project will provide social supportive services to all residents and intensive case
management services to PSH tenants.

List the number and size of the proposed units, including the income levels to be served:
43 total units including 1-3BRmanager unit.
1-1BR (630 sqft), 4-2BR (710sqft), 38-3BR (984sqft).

The proposed unit size and income levels are as follows:

Household Types SRO | Studio| 1BR | 2BR | 3BR |4BR
Extremely Low-Income (30% 1 4 11

of AMI)

Very Low-Income (50% of 26

AMI)

Other 1

TOTAL 0 0 1 4 38 0

Are the proposed household AMI levels supported by the requested funding source?

Yes, the proposed rents are at 30% AMI and 50%AMI. The maximum rents allowed by PLHA are
50% AMI.



Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

Yes, the project demonstrates readiness through the following:
a) Received planning entitlements April 26, 2022.

b) The project has received funding commitments from the Commission that include CDBG,
PLHA, and HOME-ARP, the Town of Windsor, and state funding commitment from HCD
for CDBG DR-MHP and I1G and applied for 4% tax credits and bonds.

c) Anticipated approval of construction plans by April 2026.
d)The project has received their CEQA clearance.

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

Yes, the requested PLHA funds for the project will leverage against the total development costs
at a ratio of nearly leveraged 48 to 1.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status
Citibank, N.A. $9,002,187.00 Yes
JCL Development, LLC $2,230,857.00 Yes
Tax Credit Equity $5,001,302.00 No
Sonoma County (PLHA 2023) $222,485.00 Yes
Sonoma County (CDBG) $200,000.00 Yes
Sonoma County (HOME-ARP) $1,784,842.00 Yes
Town of Windsor (IHF) $500,000.00 Yes
HCD (CDBG DR-MHP) $6,895,587.00 Yes
HCD (lIG) $3,205,300.00 Yes
Domus Development, LLC $1,189,727.00 Yes
Sonoma County (PLHA 2025) $650,000.00 No
TOTAL | $30,882,287




ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status
Tax Credit Equity $12,503,256.00 No
Citibank, N.A. $2,997,167.00 Yes
JCL Development, LLC $733,923.00 Yes
Sonoma County (PLHA 2023) $222,485.00 Yes
Sonoma County (CDBG) $200,000.00 Yes
Sonoma County (HOME-ARP) $1,784,842.00 Yes
Town of Windsor (IHF) $500,000.00 Yes
HCD (CDBG DR-MHP) $6,895,587.00 Yes
HCD (1IG) $3,205,300.00 Yes
Domus Development $1,189,727.00 Yes
Sonoma County (PLHA 2025) $650,000.00 No
TOTAL | $30,882,287

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-term maintenance and operations?

Yes, the project shows a positive 30-year cash flow. The project has five Section 8 Project-
Based Vouchers. The operating budget includes a replacement reserve of $21,500 or $S500 per
unit per year. Operating expenses excluding property taxes, resident services, and replacement
reserve, are estimated at $386,680, or $8,993 per unit. Upon closing of the construction loan,
the ownership entity will include a 501(c)(3) managing general partner which will obtain a
property tax exemption.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes, the project Affirmatively Furthers Fair Housing in providing PSH units. The project provides
affordable housing in an area of opportunity to combat segregation and promote integration.

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

Yes, the project is supported by the Town of Windsor and the Town has awarded local funds to
the project.

Additional Information:

The applicant proposes to use funds for acquisition purposes. The applicant has site control
through an enforced option to purchase and land sales contract. The project will provide social
services on site offered to residents at no charge. Redwood Glen is an all-electric powered
building with energy star appliances, and LED lighting.

Consequences of Partial or No Funding:

The project can proceed if given partial or no funding by deferring developer fee and or value
engineering.



Staff Recommendation:
As proposed the project is eligible for funding, however, given the limited amount of PLHA

funds available to award versus the number of requests, staff does not recommend funding at
this time.



Attachment 4

Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
Staff Report

Organization Name: Freebird Development Company

Project Name: Saggio Hills Phase I

Project Type: New Construction of Affordable Rental Housing

Project Description

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“Saggio Hills Phase Il is four, 3-story buildings with 42 residential units in a mix of studios and
one-, two-, and three-bedroom units (Project). The Project includes 1 studio, 19 ones, 11 twos,
and 11 threes. All units will be deed restricted for use by households at income tiers between 30
- 50 AMI except for 1 one-bedroom manager unit. 25% of the units will be reserved for people
with intellectual and developmental disabilities. The Project will include open space including a
children’s play area (1,800-square feet), a ball field (3,300-square feet), and a picnic area.
Residents will also have access to a community building developed in Phase I that includes a
community room, teen room, and additional outdoor amenities. A surface parking lot includes
68 parking spaces.”

Amount Requested: $840,284

Proposed use of funds: Construction

Report

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project? Does
the developer demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and/or other
federal and state funding to develop housing within the last seven years?

Yes, applicant has secured low-income tax credits within the last seven years and the applicant
has partnered with Jamboree Housing Corporation, who also has successfully secured tax
credits, federal funding including HOME, CDBG, Section 8, state funding including MHP, NPLH,
MHSA, VHHP, AHSC and local subsidies. The same applicant secured funding for Phase 1 of this
project.

If the application is for acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of becoming
market rate housing without additional CDC funding?
The application is requesting funds for construction, not acquisition or preservation.

Does the project set aside units for persons or households experiencing homelessness or who
are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

No, the project does not provide designated units for persons or households experiencing
homelessness or specifically at imminent risk of becoming homeless. It will target households
with 30% to 50% of the Area Median Income.



Will the project provide units for special needs populations?

Yes, the application indicates that 11 units will be reserved for households with intellectual or
development disabilities (I/DD units). The project will also serve large families with 11 3-
bedroom units.

Does the project address one of the following?
1) Creating or preserving affordable housing.

2) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support the creation or preservation of
affordable housing

3) Building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income communities

4) Promoting effective and proven strategies for homelessness prevention and intervention
county-wide that align with Continuum of Care Strategic Plan goals

5) Emphasizing self-sufficiency of agencies and or life skills for beneficiaries

Yes, the project addresses items 1 and 5 listed above. Saggio Hills Phase Il will create a total of
41 affordable rental units and offer the tenants supportive social services through the North
Bay Regional Center to increase and or support their life skills.

List the number and size of the proposed units, including the income levels to be served:
42 total units including 1 manager unit.
1-Studio (574 sqft), 19- 1BR (602 sqft), 11- 2BR (832 sqft), 11- 3BR (1204 sqft)

The proposed unit size and income level are as follows:

Household Types Studio | 1BR 2BR 3BR
Extremely Low-Income (30% of 1 6 2 2
AMI)

Very Low-Income (50% of AMI) 0 12 9 9
Other 1

TOTAL 1 19 11 11

Are the proposed household AMI levels supported by the requested funding source?

Yes, the highest proposed rents are at 50% AMI, which is maximum rents allowed by the PLHA
program.

Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

Yes, the project demonstrates advanced readiness through the following:
a) The project has received all entitlements and local approvals, except for building permits.

b) The project has been awarded tax credits and will close financing in April 2026.



c) The project has submitted for building permits and received the first round of comments
from the city.

d) An EIR was certified in 2011, and an initial study/addendum was prepared in 2023 noting no
further CEQA action required. The federal environmental review, NEPA, is on track to be
completed on December 31, 2025. The state Department of Housing and Community
Development is the Responsible Entity to complete the NEPA. Construction is planned to
commence in the spring of 2026.

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

Yes, the requested PLHA funds for the project will be leveraged against total development costs

at aratio of nearly 44 to 1.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source

Amount

Commitment Status

US Bank (LIHTC Equity) $2,240,776.00 Committed

US Bank (Construction $17,577,181.00 Committed

Loan)

HCD CDBG-DR $11,598,206.00 Committed

County CFH Loan $1,340,417.00 Committed

County PLHA Loan $840,284.00 Subject of this application
Deferred Developer Fee $1,250,000.00 Committed

Deferred Reserves $166,003.00 Committed

Land Donation $2,186,733.00 Committed

TOTAL

$37,199,600.00

ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status

US Bank (LIHTC Equity) $18,673,133.00 Committed

Citibank (Permanent Loan) | $2,560,827.00 Committed

HCD CDBG-DR $11,598,206.00 Committed

County CFH Loan $1,340,417.00 Committed

County PLHA Loan $840,284.00 Subject of this application

Land Donation

$2,186,733.00

Committed

TOTAL

$37,199,600.00

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-term maintenance and operations?

Yes, the 30-year cash flow indicates there is sufficient funds for long-term maintenance and
operations. The project has been conservatively underwritten using 2.5% income and 3.5%
expense inflators with an initial debt service coverage ratio of 1.15 ensuring increasing cash
flow over time. The project has contributions to the replacement reserve equaling $500/unit
annually to provide sufficient reserve for future capital needs.



Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes, the project Affirmatively Furthers Fair Housing in providing 11 units at extremely low-
income households (30% AMI) and social supportive services are planned to be offered to the
residents to support their life skills, which could lead to improved employment, financial, and or
housing opportunities.

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

Yes, the project has a Resolution from the City of Healdsburg approving a Disposition and
Development Agreement (DDA).

Additional Information:

One of the project’s sustainable features include a photovoltaic system that will cover 100% of
projected residential usage, tenants will not pay any utilities.

Consequences of Partial or No Funding:

If no funding is awarded, or if awarded funds are less than the amount requested, the project
team would continue to seek funds to close the budget gap, including applying for additional
state funds and Apple Funds that are administered by the Housing Trust of Silicon Valley. If the
project is not successful in securing additional gap funding, the project may consider returning
the 9% tax credit award or defer additional developer fees to make the project financially
feasible.

Staff Recommendation:

The project as proposed is eligible and has been awarded County Funds for Housing (CFH) in the
amount of $1,340,417.00. While the project is fully entitled, building permits have not been
approved. Due to the limited amount of PLHA funds available, staff recommends designating
this project as a “contingency” project and should another project awarded PLHA funds not
proceed, then funds can be reprogrammed to this project.



	FINAL_12-17-2025 Agenda for CD Committee.pdf
	Sonoma County Community Development Committee
	Regular Meeting
	AGENDA
	1. Call to Order and Roll Call
	2. Public Comment - Items Not Listed on the Agenda Within the Subject Matter Jurisdiction of the Committee
	3. Approve Meeting Minutes from November 19, 2025 Meeting
	4. Executive Director’s Report
	5. Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA): FY25-26 Funding Recommendations
	6. Adjournment
	Next Regular Meeting Date:
	January 21, 2026, 10:00 am – 12:00 pm




	CD Committee Agenda Packet 12.17.2025.pdf
	12-17-2025 Agenda for CD Committee.pdf
	Sonoma County Community Development Committee
	Regular Meeting
	AGENDA
	1. Call to Order and Roll Call
	2. Public Comment - Items Not Listed on the Agenda Within the Subject Matter Jurisdiction of the Committee
	3. Approve Meeting Minutes from November 19, 2025 Meeting
	4. Executive Director’s Report
	5. Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA): FY25-26 Funding Recommendations
	6. Adjournment
	Next Regular Meeting Date:
	January 21, 2026, 10:00 am – 12:00 pm




	DRAFT 11.19.2025 CD Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Sonoma County Community Development Committee
	Regular Meeting
	DRAFT Meeting Minutes
	1. Call to Order and Roll Call
	2. Public Comments for Items Not on the Agenda
	3. Approval of October 22, 2025 Meeting Minutes
	4. Executive Director’s Report
	5. PUBLIC HEARING: Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER)
	6. PUBLIC HEARING: Substantial Amendment to the Citizen Participation Plan
	7. Federal Funding and Low-Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund (LMIHAF) Policies
	8. Adjournment



	Item #5 - Memo with Staff Reports.pdf
	PLHA Committees Memo - FINAL.pdf
	PLHA Staff Report - Gravenstein Commons.pdf
	Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
	Staff Report

	PLHA Staff Report Heritage Park Windsor.pdf
	Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
	Staff Report

	PLHA Staff Report - Redwood Glen Apartments.pdf
	Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
	Staff Report

	PLHA Staff Report - Saggio Hills Ph 2.pdf
	Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
	Staff Report






